
ODESSA DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
CITY OF ODESSA, TEXAS 

FEBRUARY 8, 2018 
 

A regular meeting of the Odessa Development Corporation (ODC) was held on February 
8, 2018 at 2:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers, fifth floor, City Hall, 411 W. 8th St., 
Odessa, Texas. 
 
Members present: Betsy Triplett-Hurt, Melanie Hollmann, Gene Collins and Ted 
Tuminowski. 
 
Member absent:  Tim Edgmon. 
 
Others present:  Norma Aguilar-Grimaldo, Todd Stephens, Konrad Hildebrandt, Michael 
Marrero, Larry Long, Terri Gayhart, Wesley Burnett, Enrique Romero, Christi Callicoatte, 
Christi Weakland, Price Arredondo, Odel Crawford, Lawanna Lambert, David Duree, and 
others. 
 
A quorum being present, Mrs. Triplett-Hurt called the meeting to order and the following 
proceedings were held: 
 
Mr. Collins gave the invocation. 
 
Presentation to Charles Carlson.  Mrs. Triplett-Hurt presented Mr. Carlson a clock for 
his time serving on the board. Mr. Carlson stated that ODC was an amazing board and it 
assisted molding the future of Odessa.  He encouraged the board members to use his or 
her talent to help the people of Odessa. 
 
Mrs. Triplett-Hurt reminded everyone that decorum would be used during the meetings.  
She asked that we honor opinions, listen to others, and keep discussion positive with 
solutions to issues.   
 
Consent Agenda:  
1. a. January 11, 2018 minutes; 
 b. Financial and Investment Report; 
 c. Outside Agency Status Reports: CVA, UTPB-SBDC, MOTRAN, Economic 

Development Dept. – OCC including Summit Report, Odessa Hispanic 
Chamber of Commerce (OHCC), OHCC-Mexico Initiatives, and Gulf Coast 
Waste Disposal.    

   
Mrs. Triplett-Hurt asked about the Summit line item in the finance report.  Ms. Weakland 
stated that due to the Summit bankruptcy it was the Legal’s Department advice to keep 
the Summit amount as a commitment listed until that has been cleared.  Mr. Stephens 
explained that the land was part of the bankruptcy and it would be transparent for 
accounting purposes.  Ms. Hollmann asked about the automatic stay which was a 
creditor would have no adverse action during the bankruptcy process. Mr. Stephens 
stated ODC was protected even with the contract terminated.  Mr. Burnett stated that the 
release of the land would be to Grow Odessa, who hired an attorney for the land.  The 
funds would remain in the committed line litem until further notice.   Mrs. Triplett-Hurt 
requested that each committed project list the contract date and its termination date.  
She stated that the economic indicators was redundant in the financial report and the 
Economic Development Report.   
 



ODC Minutes 
February 8, 2018 
Page 2 
 
Motion was made by Mr. Collins and seconded by Ms. Hollmann to approve the consent 
agenda. The motion was approved by unanimous vote. 
 
Introduction of the Interim President of OHCC and the Mexico Initiatives 
International Relations coordinator and a discussion of strategies.     
Mr. Arredondo provided a brief personal background.  He worked with the Austin 
Chamber of Commerce.  He introduced Javier Gonzales, International Relations 
Coordinator.  Mr. Gonzales was from Chihuahua.  He provided a personal background.  
He has experience working with manufacturing oil and gas.  He served two terms with 
the Chihuahua economic development.  He stated that the Mexico government 
embraced the Mexico Initiatives.  The relationships with Odessa and Chihuahua has 
been strengthened.  The report was compiled as a joint team effort. 
 
Mr. Arredondo provided a Hispanic Chamber of Commerce overview.  He believed in 
teamwork, collaborating efforts, accountability and transparency.  He was reaching out 
to partners and would like to collaborate with the Black Chamber of Commerce and 
UTPB.  There was great potential with the Mexico Initiatives as Odessa was on the 
leading edge.  The groundwork efforts was laid for Mexico Initiatives.  He would continue 
to leverage with education and tourism. He reported that there was a transition plan in 
place for the international coordinator before Mr. Chavez’s contract ended on March 31.   
 
Mr. Arredondo lived in Tyler and works remotely.  He was in Odessa every other week.  
He would revisit his interim position in April.  
 
Ms. Hollmann asked if Mr. Gonzales would apply for the coordinator.  Mr. Arredondo 
stated that a budget amended request would be given to the ODC board to consider.  He 
was reorganizing the staff.  He stated that Mr. Gonzales was the right person but an 
economic development facilitator was needed in Odessa.  The facilitator would work with 
local businesses and assist the Mexico Initiatives 
 
Mr. Collins welcomed Mr. Arredondo.  He stated that Mexico Initiatives was an 
outstanding project in which Mr. Chavez made the connections.  He stated that it was 
time to move into phase two to close the deals.  He stated ODC spent funds on the 
project and we needed to close the deal for projects. He encouraged to utilize the 
expertise of the other Chambers.   
 
Mrs. Triplett-Hurt heard about the concerns with the leadership not living in Odessa but 
have businesses in Odessa.  Mr. Arredondo stated that three board members lived 
outside of Odessa.   
 
Mr. Arredondo did not recommend hiring a head hunter.  A job description would be 
provided.  He would utilize the two state resources to post the job.  He planned to post 
the position by March 1.  
 
Agency presentations not addressed in consent agenda.  No discussion. 
 
Appoint Board members to committees. Motion was made by Mrs. Hollmann and 
seconded by Mr. Collins to appoint the following: 
 
Tim Edgmon and Betsy Triplett-Hurt to the Partnership Committee; 
Gene Collins and Melanie Hollmann to the Tax Incentive Committee; 
Gene Collins and Ted Tuminowski to the Advertising Committee; 



ODC Minutes 
February 8, 2018 
Page 3 
 
Melanie Hollmann to the International Director Search, if needed; 
Gene Collins to the DOI Design Committee.   
 
The motion was approved by unanimous vote. 
 
Resolution No. ODC-2018R-01 - 2017 annual audit report for ODC.  Mr. Duree 
thanked the City staff with its efforts in the audit.  He reviewed the audit with the Budget, 
Finance and Audit Committee.  He highlighted the audit.  He reviewed the audit process 
and explained the modified accrual accounting.  The balance and income statement had 
the same results.  The audit had an unmodified report. There were no issues. Revenues 
increased in 2017 with a lower amount of paid incentives.  He reviewed ODC’s net 
position compared to 2016.  He explained the committed funds and assigned funds.   
 
Motion was made by Mr. Collins and seconded by Ms. Hollmann to approve the 
resolution.  The motion was approved by unanimous vote. 
 
Ms. Gayhart provided a parking garage funding schedule update. ODC spent $827,700.  
The City would need an additional $4.1 million by June.  She stated that the ODC 
approved the funding.  She stated that $5 million would be transferred from the ODC 
budget to the City budget.  The funds were already set aside in accounts payable.  Mr. 
Hildebrandt stated the initial approved amount was $8.2 million and more funds were 
needed for a total of $9.4 million.  The funds were available in the Tex Pool accounts.  
The cash would not be from any of the long-term investments.  A voucher would be 
used.    
 
Discuss and consider amendments to the matrix for the ODC Development 
Finance Program Administrative Policy. Mr. Collins reported that the matrix should 
work more for the small business.  It should be viable and accessible to small 
businesses.  The matrix needed to be more accessible.  Mr. Stephens and Mr. Burnett 
would research and address at a future meeting.  Ms. Hollmann had concerns.  She was 
not against shops and the development of downtown was important.  She did not want 
ODC to be in violation of misusing the sales tax funds as outlined in the 4A 
requirements.  Mr. Collins stated that Mr. Stephens checked the guidelines.  Ms. 
Hollmann stated that there should not be a situation where it was set-up for failure.  The 
ODC doesn’t have the support but the SBDC has that support.  ODC may need to 
increase the funding for SBDC. She stated that SBDC has the ability to assist the 
businesses to be successful.  Mr. Collins would address the concerns and would 
continue the spirt of entrepreneurship.  Ms. Hollmann stated that the proper support was 
needed.  Mr. Arredondo reported that there were two non-profits in Texas that does 
micro lending to start up clients.  The application was extensive.  Mr. Tuminowski agreed 
with helping small business and encourage the entrepreneur spirit.   
 
Amend the General Development Plan.  Mrs. Triplett-Hurt stated that the working draft 
was sent to the members but it was not ready. 
 
Mr. Tuminowski commented on the matrix.  He stated that the matrix should be a 
guideline and should be fluid with the opportunity to modify.   
 
Manufacturing survey results presentation.  Mrs. Callicoatte reported that the survey 
was done in the fall of 2017. The survey was simplified from the previous year.  She 
reviewed the results from the survey. The markets served locally increased.  The 
hindrances had an increase in employee turnover. There was an increase with 



ODC Minutes 
February 8, 2018 
Page 4 
 
respondents familiar with the ODC. She reported that there were no surprises as it went 
with the cycle of the economy.  There was a good snap shot from the survey that would 
be good for a couple of years.  The information would be shared.    
 
Tabled - Application of Yung Ham LLC (Crenshaw Carpet) for a downtown façade 
grant.  Ms. Lambert stated that Crenshaw Carpet was at 615 N. Grant and proposed a 
clean and sleek façade.  The business investment was $51,015 with a façade 
investment of $30,000.  Two bids were received for the work.  She provided a 
breakdown of the façade improvements.  The grant was approved by the Design 
Committee and was within the design standards.  She stated that there were two levels 
for a grant.  A corner lot and a building of exceptional size would qualify for a $30,000 
grant.  Ms. Lambert showed the Downtown footprint from the last 30 years.  Mr. 
Tuminowski stated this was a wonderful and great program but how were the ODC funds 
used be justified. Mr. Stephens explained that ODC funds could be used for promotional 
items.  He stated that there was no requirement for job creation.  The Odessa Challenge 
fell into the promotional category.  Mr. Tuminowski disagreed. He read an excerpt from 
an Attorney General’s opinion.  He stated that the funds used publicized the business 
only and not the city.  Mr. Stephens stated that the Attorney General gave the discretion 
to the city to decide.  The City Council and ODC felt it would promote the city.  Ms. 
Hollmann stated it was a directive by the Council.  Mr. Stephens stated it was part of the 
master plan.  Mrs. Triplett-Hurt stated that the façade program was created under the 
direction of the City Council to focus more on Grant Street and near the convention 
center.   The entire footprint of Downtown qualified for the grants.  Mr. Stephens stated 
that $250,000 was allocated for the program.  Legal was working with Finance to get a 
monthly report that identified what was spent and a fund balance.   
 
Mrs. Triplett-Hurt stated that Andrews improved its downtown.  Mr. Tuminowski stated it 
was wrong.  He stated that the funds should be used for development according to the 
law.  He stated that the Attorney General defines promotion and it didn’t meet the 
definition.  Mr. Collins stated it was a quality of life issue.  He stated that a modern and 
clean area goes a long way to progress.  The aesthetics of a city were important. Ms. 
Hollman stated that the Attorney General’s opinion was interpreted by the reader.  The 
ODC and City Council voted the creation of the program.   
 
Motion was made by Mr. Collins and seconded by Mr. Tuminowski to table this item until 
more information was provided.   
 
Mr. Collins asked about the businesses south of 1st street that was closer to the 
conference center.  The area should be included in the footprint.  Ms. Lambert would 
meet with Mr. Tuminowski to discuss the process of the downtown programs and 
operations.  The board would discuss the application next month. 
 
The motion to table was approved by unanimous vote. 
 
Board Projects and Committee, and Officer Reports including: Odessa 
Partnership. Mrs. Triplett-Hurt reported that the Partnership met and was informative.   
 
Mrs. Triplett-Hurt reminded the board about the requirement of the contractors 
submitting quarterly reports in November and February.  Ms. Hollmann stated that more 
information was received in the monthly reporting.  The board had a consensus that the 
contractors did not need to submit quarterly reports.   
 



ODC Minutes 
February 8, 2018 
Page 5 
 
Mrs. Triplett-Hurt stated that the City Secretary’s Office would prepare the agendas and 
that all items and materials be submitted to the City Secretary in a timely manner.   
 
Mr. Burnett announced that a sales tax training would be held on April 4 in the afternoon.  
The training would cover the 4A requirements.   
  
The meeting adjourned at 4:31 p.m.  
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED: 
 
 
 
Norma Aguilar-Grimaldo, TRMC, CMC Betsy Triplett-Hurt    
City Secretary     President 


